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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The first Parthenon built in Nashville in 1897 by Robert T. Creighton 
made of wood and plaster and cost $30,000. Because of its popularity 
at the Centennial Celebration, it was decided to leave it as long as 
it would stand. The structure was left and a city park was created 
around it. By 1920 the Parthenon was beyond repair and the Board 
of Park Commissioners commissioned Nashville architect Russell E. 
Hart to make working drawings for an exact replica of the Greek 
Parthenon. He worked closely with William B. Dinsmoor, a New York 
architect and archaeologist who spent much of his time in Greece 
studying the ruins.

The research and rebuilding of the concrete replica of the Parthenon 
in Nashville consumed eleven years'. With the cooperation and 
permission of the British Museum, casts were made of the Elgin marbles 
It was decided that since marble was too expensive, concrete would 
have to be made to look as much like the weathered marble of Athens 
as possible.

Wilbur F. Creighton, Sr., son of the first builder, along with 
Mr. Hart, spared no money or effort in trying to create an accurate 
reproduction. Reinforced concrete was used throughout the present 
structure. A mixture was devised of equal parts of white and grey 
cement combined with a fine aggregate ground from the same material 
as the course to gain a uniformity in tone and color. A small 
amount of quartz was added to remove any suggestion of lifelessness.

All the 1897 building was - razed except for the stone foundations and 
brick walls around the cellar. The stone foundation under the 
columns i:we?£ .strengthened to .support-the heavier; new columns."

The structure;-measures 2:28 T long by 101 T wide and 65 T in height. It 
is surrounded by columns of which no two of the seventeen running 
along .each side, nor of the six on each endi are ; kju'ite the saine space 
apart. None Is the same size as the columns near it. The columns 
around the sides and ends measure apprgximately six. feet-In diameter 
at the base, and they have an average spacing, from" face to face, of 
eight feet. They stand on a base at the top of three massive steps 
running the entire distance on all four sides of the building.

["he magic of the building is that optical illusions overcome what 
?ould be disturbing flaws. The long steps along the sides, for 
example, would seem to sag toward the middle if they were built on 
straight line. Instead, the Greeks and Nashvillians built those 

steps to rise nine inches at their center to counteract the sagging 
jffect and give the appearance of a straight line. I.

["he dimensions of the original building were copied to a thousandth y 
>f an inch. The tilt of the columns inside the sactuary Is an exact \ 
}opy of the slight lean toward the center of the building that the 
Greeks designed to overcome the illusion of leaning outward and perhaps 
:o strengthen the building.
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7. (Description - continued)

The west room, or treasury of the Parthenon, is the only part of the 
building that has Ionic columns. All the rest, inside and out, are 
Doric.

The Early Studios in Washington, D.C., made casts of the sculptured 
figures and George T. Zolnay, the sculptor who had made all the 
models for the ornamentation of the 1897 building was retained to make 
models for the Ionic friezes over the outer colonnades.

The chief variation between Nashville's version and the Greek 
original is that the Nashville building has a basement; today it is 
used as an art museum. The only objects displayed in the Parthenon 
proper are the plaster casts of the Elgin marbles used in reproducing 
the figures above the pediments.
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|| Urban Planning 

CTtTrer ('Specify}"

When Tennesseans began planning for the state's one hundredth 
birthday in-1895, it was felt tl^at an exposition-.would help to > 
rescue Nashville and the rest of the state from a financial depres­ 
sion. As plans developed, it was decided to build a replica of the 
Parthenon, crowning architectural jewel of Greece's classical era. 
After all, Nashville had been known as the "Athens of the South" 
since the 1820 T s. The Parthenon would be the central building in 
the Centennial grounds and would house art exhibits borrowed from 
museums from across the country and abroad. Grouped about the 
Parthenon would be sixteen other major exhibition buildings, with 
nine smaller buildings which would house exhibits from other cities 
and states.

Through the help of the British Museum floor plans of the original 
Parthenon, dedicated to the goddess Athene in M-38 B.C. and reduced 
to ruins in an explosion-of gunpowder stored ,-there in 1687, were 
located. Amid lavish ceremonies, the centennial ceremonies were 
begun on June 1, 1896. The Parthenon, as well; as the other 
structures built for the occasion, was constructed of wood, with 
the exterior covered with stucco and the- interior plastered.

After the Centennial celebration, which was a great •-financial"; 
success, the exposition buildings were razed. However, the 
Parthenon, emblem of the whole celebration, had become such a vital 
part of Nashville that the public did not want to let it go. 
Built in 1897 to last one season, it was finally beyond repair in 
1920. The-Board of Park Commissioners urged that the Parthenon 
be rebuilt of permanent materials.

The Parthenon is significant in that it is the only replica of the 
original Parthenon in existence and is a perfect example of the 
classic Greek temple architecture. It is the only remaining link 
of Nashville's centennial exposition. Its use as an art center is 
important to Nashville, and it has served not only as background 
for art festivals, but also for Greek pageants, flower shows, and 
Christmas pageants. It is one of the trademarks of the "Athens 
>f the South" and is one of its top tourist attractions.
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